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	General

	Q.1
	Will the pre-bid workshop presentation be posted?  Can an attendee list for the workshop be posted?

	A.1
	Yes. All solicitation documents will be posted to the CEC website at the following link:
http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/GFO-16-502

	Q.2
	Can PIER funds be used to purchase equipment?

	A.2
	Yes.  Equipment purchases need to be detailed in the budget workbook (attachment 7 of the solicitation manual) under the equipment tab.  Equipment purchases are items that have a per unit cost greater than $5,000.

	Q.3
	Performance Period: We are planning to budget this proposal for two years starting from January 2017 and ending on December 2018. Is that okay? We mean any restriction for the performance period for this Group D proposal?

	A.3
	According to Section I.G of the solicitation manual, Key Dates, the anticipated end dates for agreements resulting from this solicitation is January 2021.  Your proposal of starting work in January 2017 and ending December 2018 falls within this time.

	Q.4
	At UC Merced, we have internally defined 55% direct cost as other UC campuses. However, we think the direct cost is reduced to around 25% if the UC campus proposals for California Energy Commission (CEC), which one of these direct costs should we budget?

	A.4
	We interpret your question as asking about the University of California’s negotiated indirect cost rate.  The negotiated rate for indirect costs between the California Energy Commission and the University of California is 25%. Please refer to the University of California terms and conditions, item 16e at http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier.html#terms .

	Q.5
	Submission Due Date: What is the due date for Group D proposal submission?

	A.5
	For phase 2, the submission due date for Group D proposals is September 30, 2016.  For phase 3, it is January 17, 2017, if funds are available.  Group D is not a part of phase 1.  Please see Section I.G of the solicitation manual for more information.

	Q.6
	For Group D, what is the deadline to submit the proposal? What is the performance time for this project (e.g., 2 years project)? Any requirement for indirect cost?

	A.6
	Please see the response to question 5 for Group D deadlines to submit proposals and the response to question 3 for project timelines.  There are no requirements to include indirect costs in your budget.  For instructions on how to include indirect costs in your budget, see attachment 7, the indirect costs tab.  See also the response to question 4 regarding the maximum indirect cost rate for the University of California.

	Q.7
	Can you comment on the likelihood that funding will still be available for Phase 2 and Phase 3 based upon experience from past solicitations?

	A.7
	Funding availability for phase 2 and phase 3 will depend on the number of passing applications received.  In any case, the amount budgeted for Group D will be available for phase 2 regardless of the outcome of phase 1.

	Q.8
	The budget form has task level budgeting.  Does the CEC expect task level invoicing upon execution of an award?

	A.8
	Task level budgeting has been removed from the budget forms (attachment 7) and will not be included in agreements from this solicitation.  

	Q.9
	I read the subjected solicitation. If you can clarify this, it would be highly appreciated.

In page 20 of the solicitation, there was no eligible area for "applied research and development and early, pilot-scale testing activity", only analysis projects were mentioned in this page. 

But these are mentioned in page 15 as eligible projects. 

in page 15 of the solicitation;

"Projects in Group D must fall within the “applied research and development” stage.  Applied research and development projects include activities that support pre-commercial technologies and approaches. These projects include studies and/or analyses designed to support implementation or solve specific problems in integrated natural gas systems and early, pilot-scale testing activities that are necessary to demonstrate the feasibility of pre-commercial technologies."
 And in page 20 of the solicitation;

 Projects in Group D analyze various natural gas topics. Projects in this group must analyze one of the following areas and address the specific research questions.

	A.9
	For Group D, proposals must adhere to the projects listed on page 20 of the solicitation manual.  Only two projects listed in Group D have the potential for pilot-scale testing: the analysis of effects of low-water flow on building plumbing and analysis of occupant behavior (see pages 20 and 21). These are the only applied research areas that could include pilot testing.  See also response to Question 15.  Any proposed pilot testing activities outside of these two projects would not be eligible for funding.


	Project Eligibility

	Q.10
	Does Compact Plumbing Design qualify under Group A?

	A.10
	Yes, if the technology meets the project requirements in Section II.B and can demonstrate an improvement in efficiency from the current average of 35 percent to approximately 50 percent (see page 18 of the solicitation manual).

	Q.11
	I'm with a small business located in Berkeley and we are developing Stirling engines with a bio-methane burner for combined power and hot water production.  Would our technology qualify for Group A demonstration for GFO-16-502 (Natural Gas Energy Efficiency Research Grants for Residential and Commercial Buildings)?

	A.11
	Such a project is considered a cogeneration project as defined in the Key Terms in Section I.B.  These projects are not eligible for funding in our solicitation, pursuant to Section II.B.3. Please refer to the following link for potential cogeneration funding opportunities.
http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/ 

	Q.12
	Can a multiple-site (i.e., 2 - 5) demonstration be proposed in a single application to help show the opportunity for and persistence of savings in various behavioral settings?  Will having multiple sites be viewed positively or negatively in any way throughout the scoring?

	A.12
	Multiple demonstration sites can be included in a proposal.  The scoring team will consider both the advantages of conducting demonstrations at multiple sites (e.g. more robust results) and the negatives (e.g. more complicated project logistics and potentially extended timelines) in the context of the proposed budget, timeline and allocation of labor resources.

	Q.13
	If there is a potential air quality benefit of this energy efficiency technology to reduce particulate emissions, can funding be used for testing to document this benefit?

	A.13
	Yes. As long as energy efficiency or natural gas reduction is the primary benefit.

	Q.14
	Is fuel-switching allowed (as in switching between electricity and natural gas)?

	A.14
	No.

	Q.15
	Is fuel switching allowed? For example, if a technology eliminates the need for natural gas but uses a small amount of electricity as a backup energy source, would that be eligible under this solicitation?

	A.15
	No. 

	Q.16
	Does group D include laboratory studies?

	A.16
	Yes, if the laboratory studies will be used to inform a future full scale research project and not conducting basic research to test a concept or theory.  See also response to question 8 regarding pilot studies.  

	Q.17
	Group C lists “development and demonstration.”  What percentage of the funds can be spent on development?

	A.17
	There are no requirements for breaking out funding into development and demonstration.  However, all development and demonstration projects must have a demonstration site identified in the submitted proposal.

	Q.18
	Can power generation be included as a self-power feature - not fed back into the grid?

	A.18
	No. However, if you are producing mechanical power and not producing electricity then it would be eligible, such as powering a compressor or a gas fired heat pump.

	Q.19
	Can grid-connected CHP be included in the demonstration if the PIER funds are not spent to support it?

	A.19
	Yes, if it is not the primary technology being demonstrated and the basis for the energy savings.  For example, if you are testing a solar absorption system where the primary purpose is the reduction of natural gas, then this would be an eligible project.  If the applicant uses match funds to add a grid-connected generation system powered by the systems waste heat, then this could be included/

	Q.20
	Are technologies that improve NOx emissions but don’t save 10% of the energy suitable for the solicitation?

	A.20
	Yes.  The 10 percent in savings is an overall goal.  Moreover, NOx emission reducing technology is listed as examples of the type of technologies that can be funded from this solicitation.  However, projects must have natural gas savings.  See also response to question 12.

	Q.21
	Are ANSI safety and CARB certification required for technologies being demonstrated? 

	A.21
	American National Standards Institute (ANSI) safety requirements are not required but should be practiced to the extent possible.  Though CARB (California Air Resources Board) certification is not needed, some technologies may require environmental permits prior to installation, such as those required by local air pollution control districts or to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The applicant is responsible for determining the permit requirements for its demonstration project and securing and paying for all necessary permits, as indicated in Attachment 6, Statement of Work, Subtask 1.8.  Additionally, CARB may have certification requirements for products undergoing “testing” or “demonstration” within the State of California.  

	Q.22
	Will waste heat recovery electric heat pumps for water heating or pre-heating to a supplemental natural gas water heater be eligible under this solicitation?

	A.22
	Yes.

	Q.23
	What does CEC mean by ‘integrated heat pump water heater with space cooling’? Can the high efficiency integrated system be an all-electric system? i.e. integrated system is operated solely by electricity? If yes, can the electricity be from the grid? Or, does it have to be only from solar/PV?

	A.23
	An integrated heat pump water heater with space cooling would be a heat pump water heater that uses the cooling side of the heat pump to provide space cooling.  Such a system would need to be an absorption- or gas-fired heat pump per the requirements in Section II.B of the solicitation manual.  Heat pumps powered by electricity, either by grid electricity or solar PV, are not eligible for funding in this solicitation.

	Q.24
	Does the integrated system have to be a gas only system? i.e., absorption cooling combined with gas heat pump water heater?

	A.24
	No.  A solar thermal powered system is also allowed.  Absorption cooling combined with a gas heat pump water heater would also be an example of allowable technology. However, electrically powered systems combined with gas are not eligible.

	Q.25
	Can an ‘integrated system’ be proposed as a gas and electric combination heat pump?  

	A.25
	No.  In this solicitation, an integrated system refers to technologies that perform tasks such as water heating, space cooling and process heating as one unit and it uses natural gas.  See response to questions 23 and 24.

	Q.26
	a.   Can applicants apply to more than one Group if their project is cross-cutting and potentially fits into multiple Groups? 
b.  Will they be disqualified for doing so?

	A.26
	a.  No. In this context, cross-cutting projects are defined as those that “integrate” multiple tasks (e.g. water heating and space heating/cooling) into a single unit.  Applicants with these types of projects must apply under Group C. 

b.  Yes. The Project Groups section in Attachment 1 of the solicitation states that applicants must select only one group. Applicants that select multiple groups will be disqualified under Section IV.C of the solicitation manual which specifies that one of the grounds for rejection can be that “the application does not literally comply or contains caveats that conflict with the solicitation, and the variation or deviation is material.”



	Disadvantaged Communities

	Q.27
	For a project to be classified as being in a disadvantaged community, does it have to reside in a SB 535 area or can it be half a mile from the border as long as it services a disadvantaged community.

	A.27
	To obtain the optional scoring points for disadvantaged communities (see Scoring Criteria 10, Section IV.F. of the application manual), the demonstration site must be in a disadvantaged community and must justify how the project will benefit the disadvantaged community. As indicated in Section I.B of the application manual, disadvantaged communities are defined as areas representing census tracts scoring in the top 25 percent in CalEnviroScreen 2.0. Please use the following link to ensure your project is located within a geographic area defined as a disadvantaged community: 
· http://oehha.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=dae2fb1e42674c12a04a2b302a080598

	Q.28
	Does a project have to be in a disadvantaged community to be eligible for the points? Or can the project be adjacent to a disadvantaged community with benefits flowing to the disadvantaged community?

	A.28
	Please see response to question 27


	Measurement and Verification

	Q.29
	Are affiliated companies that are separately incorporated acceptable for independent 3rd party M&V subcontractors?

	A.29
	No. As indicated in Section II.B.3.b. of the grant manual, independent third-party measurement and verification (M&V) is required to address the natural gas savings and economic benefits at each demonstration site.  An “affiliated” company with a shared financial interest is not independent, so would not be acceptable.

	Q.30
	The research team prefers to do the energy measurement.  Can the independent 3rd party M&V sub be used to review the measurement package and verify the results rather than make the measurements?

	A.30
	Yes.  However, the applicant must submit a report from the reviewer/auditor that certifies that the data was reviewed and determined to be accurate by an independent 3rd party. The independent 3rd party must be identified in the proposal along with its credentials, qualifications and experience in doing such reviews.


	Investor Owned Utilities

	Q.31
	Can you have an IOU as a partner?

	A.31
	Yes.

	Q.32
	Can an IOU commit matching funds?

	A.32
	Yes.

	Q.33
	Can an end use customer get energy efficiency rebates/incentives when participating in this project? If yes, could these monies be used for cost share?

	A.33
	No, energy efficiency rebates/incentives that target commercially available equipment or technologies cannot be used as match funds for this GFO because commercially available technologies are not eligible for this solicitation.  However, utility funds that focus specifically on pre-commercial technologies, such as IOU Emerging Technology Programs, can be used for match funding.

	Q.34
	Can applicants raise cash match via state/federal renewable loan programs?

	A.34
	A loan cannot be used as match if any of the following occur:  a) the loan is contingent and not already approved at the time of the application (see  Section I.F.2),  b) the loan targets commercially available equipment or technologies that is the focus of your project and does not meet the eligibility requirements of the solicitation (see Section II), and c) the loan originates from the Energy Commission.  If the loan is used to finance pre-commercial technologies that are the focus of your project, then the loan can be used as match but only the loan payment amount that coincides with the grant term. For example, if the annual payment for the loan is $5,000 and the grant term is 3 years, then only $15,000 can be included as match.


	Demonstration Sites

	Q.35
	Can a new homes subdivision be submitted as a demonstration site if it does not have an exact address yet?

	A.35
	Yes, as long as the applicant provides some means of identifying the specific location such as street address or parcel number (such as the assessor’s parcel number or APN). The Energy Commission staff will use this information to verify the project location to determine eligibility (IOU service area) and compliance with CEQA.  For a new home subdivision provide information such as tentative tract maps, subdivision environmental impact reports, negative declarations, and permits.  All information on project locations must be contained in Attachment 1 (Application) and Attachment 8 (CEQA Compliance Form). If the Energy Commission staff cannot verify project location for the demonstration site, the application could fail the application screening criteria 6 on page 32.


	Q.36
	How specific does the site address need to be?

	A.36
	The applicant can provide the street address, parcel number, tract maps and any identifying information as indicated in the response to question 33.


	Evaluation Process

	Q.37
	Selecting technologies for demonstration that have 250-500 hours of performance testing and that are still emerging and not in widespread use will be challenging.  Will the selection process discriminate against technologies that have been thoroughly tested and evaluated? 

	A.37
	Technologies that have been thoroughly tested, evaluated and are commercially available are not eligible for grant funding.

	Q.38
	I have the following questions:

a) If a technology is commercially available for one sector (e.g., residential) but not in another sector (e.g., commercial), is this considered a pre-commercial technology and eligible for consideration in this solicitation.

b) If a technology has more than 500 hours of performance testing in one sector (e.g., residential) but not in another sector (e.g., commercial) and this latter sector is the subject of our application, will this type of application be eligible.

	A.38
	a) Yes.  As indicated in Section I.B of the solicitation manual, the definition of pre-commercial technologies also includes technologies that have been tested in one sector but not in another. This technology would be eligible for consideration in this solicitation.
b) Yes. The minimum hours of performance indicated in Section I.A. of the solicitation manual do not have to be in the same sector as the demonstration site.
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